SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
THI RD SPECI AL SESSI ON
Cct ober 30, 2015
3:09 p.m

3:09: 07 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MacKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 3:09 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co-Chair
Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny O son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Craig Richards, Attorney Ceneral, Departnment of Law, Marty
Rut herford, Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnent of Natural
Resources; Martin Shultz, Assistant General, Departnment of
Law, Senator Charlie Huggins; Representative Geran Tarr;
Senator Kevin Meyer; Representative Matt C aman.

SUMVARY
SB 3001 APPROP: LNG PRQIECT and FUND/ AGDC/ SUPP.

SB 3001 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

#sb3001
SENATE BI LL NO. 3001

"An Act nmaking supplenental appropriations; mnaking
appropriations to capitalize f unds; maki ng
appropriations to the general fund from the budget



reserve fund (art. 11X sec. 17, Constitution of the
State of Alaska) in accordance with sec. 12(c), ch. 1,
SSSLA 2015; and providing for an effective date."

3:10: 36 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon introduced the legislators in the room

CRAI G Rl CHARDS, ATTORNEY GENERAL, DEPARTMENT OF LAW
i nt roduced hi nsel f.

MARTY RUTHERFORD, DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT  CF
NATURAL RESOURCES, i ntroduced hersel f.

MARTI N SHULTZ, ASSISTANT GENERAL, DEPARTMENT OF LAW
di scussed the presentation, "Senate Bill 138 and AKLNG
Proj ect Overview, October 2015" (copy on file).He | ooked at
slide 2, "Senate Bill 138":
 Passed April 2014
* Provides Authority for the AKLNG Project
* AGC. Infrastructure
* DNR and DOR Gas
 Legislature: Contract Approval
* Provides New Provisions for Tax as Gas (TAG
* Anends O and Gas Production Tax Statutes
» Created Municipal Advisory Gas Project Review Board

* Requires Reports to Legislature

3:16: 01 PM

M. Shultz highlighted slide 3, "Provides Authority for
AKLNG Proj ect, ACDC':

SECTI ONS 7021
e Anended AGDC s Statutory Purpose, Powers and Duties,

Funds to allow AGDC to hold an ownership interest in
an Al aska |iquefied natural gas project

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P.M



e AS 31.25.005 - AGC nmy develop and have
primary responsibility for developing an Al aska
i quefied natural gas project

« AS 31.25.080(a) - AGDC mmy acquire ownership
interest in pipeline, gas treatnent, |iquefaction

e« AS 31.25.110 - Alaska liquefied natural gas
project fund

M. Shultz discussed slide 4, "Provides Authority for AKLNG
Project, DNR':

SECTI ONS 24025, 28

e Gve DNR conmssioner authority to negotiate
commercial agreenents, market R K/ TAG and nodify

| eases
» AS 38.05.020(b)(11) — In consultation with DOR
participate in negotiation of agreenents that
i nclude bal anci ng, mar ket i ng, di sposition of

natural gas, and offtake

« AS 38.05.020(b)(14)— In consultation with DOR,
take custody of tax delivered to the state as gas
(TAG and nanage project services and disposition
and sal e of TAG

e AS 38.05.180(hh)0O(ii) — DNR conm ssioner nmay
make certain nodifications to AKLNG Project
| eases for initial project term

M. Shultz commented that the slide gave a high level |ook
at DNR' s authority in the project. He noted that it was in
conpliance with every provision of SB 138. He pointed out a
key provision of SB 138 was to authorize the conmm ssioner.
Further, SB 138 authorized DNR to take custody of the "tax
as gas" (TAG.

3:20:16 PM

Senator Dunl eavy asked for nore information about targets
in the sectional analysis. M. Schultz clarified that the
state agencies that were given roles under SB 138 were in
conpliance with the responsibilities that were assigned
under those roles. He stated that negotiations wth
counterparties left sonme things out of the state's control.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P.M



Senat or Dunl eavy wondered if there would be a discussion of
benchmarks or anything that the adm nistration may request
nodi fication. M. Schultz replied that there would be
benchmark discussion by M. Rutherford later in the
presentati on.

Senator Dunleavy remarked that he would like to know the
i ssues regarding the reasoning behind the admnistration's
efforts. He requested the admnistration's concerns wth
the bill. M. Schultz replied that there were no current
statutory anendnents to fornmer legislation SB 138. He felt
that SB 138 provided the authority that the different
agenci es and AGC needed to pursue the project.

Co-Chair MacKinnon wondered if GCeneral Richards had any
related comments. General Richards affirned the coments of
M. Schultz.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon | ooked at slide 3, and wondered if it
was an accurate statenent that "AGC nay devel op and have
primary responsibility for developing an Al aska |iquefied
natural gas project”, or did the statute say "AGDC shall",
etc.

3:24:11 PM
AT EASE

3:25:11 PM
RECONVENED

3:25:18 PM

Co-Chair MacKinnon wondered if the slide accurately
reflected state statute. M. Schultz replied that the bill
said "shall."

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if the word "shall" related to
the LNG conponent to the project. M. Schultz replied that
AGDC was authorized to have an equity interest in all
conponents of the project. He stated that AGC was the
state's infrastructure owner, and Departnment of Natural
Resources (DNR) owned the gas.

Senator Dunleavy wondered if the wording in the slide

should be changed to "may." M. Schultz replied that it
says "shall" in the statute.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P.M



Senator Dunleavy felt that the "may" should be "shall." M.
Schul t z agreed.

M. Schultz clarified that in AS 31.25.080 the word was
"may", and AS 31.25.005 used the word "shall."

Co- Chair MacKi nnon announced that her question related to
AS 31.25.005. She wanted to be sure that AGC "shall" have
primary responsibilities for developing a liquefied natural
gas project on behalf of the state.

M. Schultz addressed slide 5, "Provides Authority for
AKLNG Proj ect, DOR'

SECTI ONS 2410125, 40041
e Expand the authority of comm ssioner of DOR

e AS 38.05.020(b)(11) — In consultation with DOR
participate in negotiation of agreenents that
i nclude bal anci ng, mar ket i ng, di sposition of
nat ural gas, and offtake

« AS 38.05.020(b)(14)— In consultation with DOR,
take custody of tax delivered to the state as gas
(TAG and nanage project services and disposition
and sal e of TAG

e AS 43.05.010(17) — DOR comm ssioner directs the
di sposition of revenues received from TAG

3:30: 27 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon | ooked at slide 4, and wondered who was
wor ki ng on conmercial agreenments. M. Schultz replied that
the state had a team to work together. There were separate
primary responsibilities, but there was a coordi nated team
to negoti ate t he i ssues. He expl ai ned t hat t he
infrastructure agreenents were the primary responsibility
of AGDC, but in regard to sonme other agreenents that were
primarily DNR s responsibilities.

Co-Chair MacKinnon wanted to tie the $10 mllion request
wth the coments in the Senate Resources Conmittee
regarding the primary function and spending on ASAP. She
remarked that a significant portion of AGDC s budget was

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P.M



spent on the ASAP |line. She wondered if ASAP a separate
entity was. M. Schultz stated that the under SB 138, the
attorney general becanme counsel for AGDC with regard to the
AKLNG project in devel oping agreenents for the project. The
attorney general's office did not represent AGC wth
regard to the ASAP project. He shared that wunder fornmner
| egislation, HB 4, AGC had authority to hire its own
| awyers for the ASAP li ne.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if there was any authority for
AGDC to purchase gas. M. Schultz replied that AGDC could
devel op a marketing entity to purchase gas.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked if AGDC could purchase gas. M.
Schultz replied that the legislature's authority to create
a marketing subsidiary necessarily inplicates the ability
of that marketing entity to acquire gas.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon wondered if the referenced subsidiary
was the aggregator. M. Schultz replied that the aggregator
was a concept that related to the AKLNG project, but AGDC
could take gas acquired from a gas seller, aggregate it,
and sell it to entities that did not have the critical nass
to acquire their own gas.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon understood that HB 4 allowed a rel ated
function. She shared that she would conduct further
research and submt an inquiry. M. Schultz replied that it
may relate to donestic gas.

3:35: 39 PM

M. Schultz continued to discuss slide 5:

SECTI ONS 24025, 40041
e Expand the authority of comm ssioner of DOR

« AS 38.05.020(b)(11) - In consultation wth DOR
participate in negotiation of agreenents that include
bal anci ng, marketing, disposition of natural gas, and
of f t ake

« AS 38.05.020(b)(24)- In consultation with DOR take
custody of tax delivered to the state as gas (TAG and
manage project services and disposition and sale of
TAG

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P.M



« AS 43.05.010(17) - DOR conm ssioner directs the
di sposition of revenues received from TAG

Co-Chair MacKinnon wondered if Alaska owns sonme gas.
General Richards replied that technically the state of
Al aska owned the gas in the ground until titled change.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon surm sed that there was an inclusion of
the royalty in kind provision. She asked for a sinpler
expl anation. Ceneral Richards replied that Al aska owned the
gas until it was produced.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon surm sed that the | ease hol der woul d own
the gas at that tinme. General R chards replied in the
affirmati ve.

M. Schultz slide 6, "Provides Authority for AKLNG Project,
Legi sl ature”:

SECTI ON 24

e Gves Legislature final approval of contracts over 2
years

« AS 38.05.020(b)(11)- Any agreenent or contract
negotiated under this paragraph to which the
State is a party is not effective unless the
| egi sl ature authorizes the governor to execute it

SECTI ON 77

* Legislature also receives quarterly AKLNG
Project briefings

3:40: 19 PM

Co-Chair Kelly queried sonme contracts. M. Schultz stated
that there were sone slides that would include sone
participants. He stated that the producers desired sone
fiscal and governance agreenents.

Co-Chair Kelly wondered if the agreenents were |ocated on
slide 16. M. Schultz replied in the affirmative.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P. M



Co-Chair Kelly wondered if the agreenments needed to be
executed by Decenber. M. Schultz replied that there would
be a di scussion of timng.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if AGDC was required to present
the contracts to the legislature. M. Schultz stated that
the provision on slide 6 did not relate to AGDC, but only
appl i ed DOR

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if AGDC was required to present
to the legislature on contracts for over two years. M.
Schultz agreed to provide that information, but stated that
there was not a two-year provision for an AGC contract.

3:45:22 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon understood that the attorney general was
the counsel for AGDC, and the ASAP had their own counsel
M. Schultz stated that he nmust have m sspoke. He expl ai ned
that there was a separate attorney general, other than
himsel f, that represented AGC within the Departnent of
Law.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if AGDC was required to present
to the legislature when they entered into contracts | onger
than two years. She noticed that there were sone people in
the audience who were shaking their heads "no." GCeneral
Ri chards assumed that AGDC was not required to present to
the |l egislature, but agreed to provide further information.

3:46: 50 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon remarked that the conmmttee was
surprised by the information regarding the formation of two
new subsidiaries. She wondered if there were any other
subsidiaries in the various state agencies specifically
related to gas sales agreenments. General Richards replied
that he was not aware of any additional subsidiaries.

Co- Chair MacKinnon wondered where the gas negotiations
woul d occur. M. Schultz replied that SB 138 specifically
called out marketing agreenents. He stated that marketing
could involve joint venture markets.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if the gas sales agreenents

would need to be presented to the legislature. GCeneral
Richards replied that he believed that any gas sales and

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P.M



mar ket i ng agreenent over two years nust be presented to the
| egi sl ature.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon expl ained that the comrttee had engaged
in conversations regarding the legislature' s understanding
of gas sal es agreenents.

3:50: 24 PM

Senator Bishop |ooked at the asset holding conpany, and
wondered why there should be a holding conpany for TC s
assets. M. Schultz agreed to provide that information.

Senator Bishop restated his question. He wondered why AGDC
created a holding conpany to hold TC s assets. Co-Chair
MacKi nnon further requested sonething already authorized by
AGDC.

M. Schultz discussed slide 7, "Tax Provisions, TAG and
Taxes":

SECTI ONS 42069
* Relate to tax as gas (TAG in the production tax,
and conform ng anendnents in corporate incone tax and

oil and gas and pipeline property tax

* None of these sections address AKLNG Project
authority in the mdstreamor |iquefaction

e Admnistration is either in conpliance with, or
no action is required for, each of these sections
M. Schultz highlighted slide 8, "Minicipal Advisory Gas
Proj ect Review Board, MAGPR Board":
SECTI ON 74
e Requests that governor establish an advisory
planning group to advise governor on municipal

i nvol venent in a North Sl ope natural gas project

* MAGPR Board assenbled by AO 269 on Mrch 25,
2014

* Chaired by Comm ssioner of Revenue

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P.M



* Prepare MAGPR Annual Report

e Meets regularly using transparent coll aborative
public process to

 Discuss AKLNG Project property tax issues
* Recommend possible options to address and
mtigate inpacts of new infrastructure

associ ated wth AKLNG Proj ect

e Currently discussing property tax structure,
amounts and al | ocation

e Tentative proposal $880M I npact Fee
$15. 7B Fl ow Rate Property Tax

* Next MAGPR Board neeting wll take place after
speci al session

3:55: 55 PM

Co-Chair MacKinnon noted that the tentative fee proposal
for the municipalities along the route was a fixed fee. She
wondered if there may be less value to the nunicipalities
after the buyout. M. Schultz agreed to provide that
i nformation.

M. Schultz addressed slide 9, "Requires Reports to
Legi sl ature, Required Reports":

SECTI ONS 73, 76
e InOState Gas Report and Fi nanci ng Report

e Section 73 — DNR in consultation with AGDC to
provi de report and recomrendati ons on inlstate gas and
costs, benefits, and risks associated with a pipeline
larger than 42 inches, due on or before date FTSA
submtted to legislature for approva

e STATUS:. drafting; final on or before date FTSA

subm tted
e Section 76 — DOR to provide report on financing
opti ons, i ncl udi ng options for muni ci palities,

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P. M



residents, or regional corporations to invest in the
Project, due when first contract submitted to the
| egi sl ature.

» STATUS: interim report provided; final wth
first contract

Senator Dunleavy wondered if the state was |ooking at a
corporation-type vehicle where the people could buy into
the project. M. Schultz deferred to DOR

Co- Chair MacKi nnon remarked that she had recently received
an email from a constituent wondering iif they could
contribute or invest part of their permanent fund to the
proj ect .

4:00: 50 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon |ooked at slide 9, and noted that the
state was required to provide the report about the size of
the pipe. M. Schultz replied that there was a draft report
that included the cost benefit and risks of the pipe
compari son.

Co-Chair MacKinnon queried the departnment that would
deliver the report. M. Schultz replied that AGC and DNR
woul d work together to devel op the report.
M. Schultz discussed slide 10, "Heads of Agreenent":

* PARTIES: State, AGDC, Producers, TC

* KEY PROVI SI ONS:

e ARTICLE 4: PredFEED technical work to take
between 18 and 24 nonths, wth FEED decision
expected within 36 nonths

 ARTICLE 5: State equity participation and a
State Gas Share

 ARTICLE 6 and Appendix A Pr oldexpansi on
principl es

 ARTICLE 6.5: At least five inlstate off take
points for domestic gas needs

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P.M



e ARTICLE 8: subject to the State being satisfied
W th pr oj ect enabl i ng contracts, i ncl udi ng
sati sfactory arrangenents for disposition of the
State Gas Share, the State/DNR will elect R K

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if Decenber 31, 2015 would be
the expiration date for the current Heads of Agreenent
(H®), and whether a new HOA would ask for new ternms. M.
Schultz replied that the HOA would expire on that date. He
did not see any reason to extend the HOA

4:05:36 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if there should be an anmendnent
to state statutes to elimnate any nention of TC M.
Schultz replied in the negative.

Ms. Rutherford |ooked at slide 11, "AKLNG Project Status,
Provided to Legislature in 2014." She noted that it was
very near the tinme of conclusion for Pre-FEED. She remarked
that the slide addressed fee and construction schedul e.

Ms. Rutherford discussed slide 12, "AKLNG Project Status":

* Revised: Technical work delivery dates have changed,
“Legislative Action” on conmercial agreenents not yet
needed, but “SOCA Wthout TC nunbers consistent wth
2014 nunbers

Ms. Rutherford stated that slide 13 showed that the FEED
would start in 2017. She remarked that the end dates for
the projects were different. She stated that the origina

schemati ¢ showed a 2023 conpletion. She stressed that the
vi rtual project estimates were nearly identical. She
remar ked that there had been sonme delays on the comerci al

agr eenent s.

Co- Chair MacKinnon wondered if Pre-FEED would only go
t hr ough May 2016. Ms. Rut herford replied in the
affirmative. She explained that the original schematic
showed t hat Pre-FEED woul d end.

4:11:19 PM

Co-Chair MacKinnon queried who identified the gaps. M.
Rut herford replied that the AKLNG Project identified the
gaps. She did not know who identified the regul atory gaps.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P. M



Co- Chair MacKi nnon shared that the state of Al aska asked
the project team to examne the difference in the pipe
size, so that contributed to a delay. M. Rutherford
replied that Pre-FEED woul d not be del ayed, rather it would
go the full tinme of the initial schedule for Pre-FEED>

Co-Chair MacKi nnon wondered if the difference in nunbers
between slides 11 and 12 was because of the 25 percent
ownership to the state of Alaska, or a refined nunber for
the overall project. M. Rutherford replied that the cost
was virtually identical, but there was a transfer of cash
call responsibilities fromTC to the state.

Ms. Rutherford highlighted slide 13, "AKLNG Conmerci al
Status." She shared that she would be discussing the status
of the comrercial negotiations and how the state sees the
timeliness of a FEED deci si on.

Co-Chair Kelly wondered if the state was the |east inclined
party. He wanted to be convinced that the state was not the
"least inclined party.” M. Rutherford replied that there
was confidentiality involved in that response.

Co-Chair Kelly stressed that he did not understand why the
state did not have a confidentiality agreenent with the
partners.

4:16: 03 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if M. Rutherford had signed a
confidentiality agreenent for the project. M. Rutherford
replied that she had signed a confidentiality agreenent.
She stated that there were commercial negotiations where
conpani es were nost concerned, so they did not want to be
held in ternms of a particular agreenent. She stressed that
there was no structural problem She stressed that Al aska
wanted expansion and third party access, so it could
possibility affect commercial agreenents.

Co- Chai r Kel l'y wonder ed i f t he ref usal to sign
confidentiality agreenments slowed down the process of
comercial agreenents. Ms. Rutherford replied that she was
not aware of that situation in AKLNG

Co-Chair Kelly expressed concern about the confidentiality
agr eenent s.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P. M



4:20:14 PM

Senat or Bishop wondered if there may need to be a point
where nore people sign a confidentiality agreenent. M.
Rut herford replied that she answered to the comm ssioner of
DNR. She stated that her AKLNG authority was an executive.

Co-Chair Kelly wondered if the conm ssioner of DNR chose
not to sign the agreenent, or if soneone told him not to
sign it. M. Rutherford stated that the admnistration
chose not to have t he comi ssi oners sign t he
confidentiality agr eenent s, because t hey felt t hat
executives did not need to sign agreenents.

Co-Chair Kelly stressed that the state was in a position
where they could not fully avail thenselves of information
to nove the process forward. M. Rutherford restated that
the adm nistration had decided to not sign confidentiality
agreenents. She stated that the producer conpani es had been
open with information w thout those concerns.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if regulations were currently
out for review M. Rutherford replied that AGDC had sone
eval uations out for review, but she only had a rough idea
of their actions.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if AGDC had any regul ati ons out
for review, and whether they had closed. General Richards
replied in the affirmative, but did not know whether they
wer e cl osed.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon announced that the regulation review
closed on October 21 or 23. She wondered if General
Ri chards wr ot e t hose regul ati ons. Cener al Ri chards
responded that he could not answer that question as a
matter of attorney client privilege.

4:24:51 PM
AT EASE

4:25: 50 PM
RECONVENED

4:25: 56 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P. M



Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if an attorney for the state
wote the regulations for the review for the project.
General Richards replied that attorneys at DOL worked on
the project. He could not confirm who wote the
regul ati ons.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon shared that the three partners conmented
on the regulations. Ceneral Richards replied that he was
not aware of those comments.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon requested a review of the public coment
on those regul ations. She stated that there was an issue of
public record, and the partners had expressed interest in
who was signing confidentiality agreenents. She thanked Ms.
Rut herford for providing an organizational chart, which
outlined the available expertise. She remarked that there
were five decision makers on the project for the state. She
surm sed t hat t hose i ndi vi dual s had not si ghed
confidentiality agreements, and wondered how the state was
able to participate in negotiations wthout participating
in the projects. General Richards explained that there was
an arrangenent wth the partners to access needed
i nformati on.

4:30: 04 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if the client was AGC. GCenera
Richards replied in the affirmative.

Co-Chair MacKinnon queried the attorney for the ASAP
project. GCeneral Richards replied that there were severa

attorneys in various capacities, but he had not interacted
wi th those attorneys.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if AGDC would allow information
about who wote the regulations. General Ri chards responded
that M. Fauske nay not have the power to waive that right.
He felt that question mght require a |egal.

Co-Chair Kelly queried the person who would provide the
| egal opinion. General Richards replied that the privilege
did not belong to the individual, rather it belonged to the
corporation. He suspected it required a board action.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon | ooked at slide 13:

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P. M



Active negotiations anobng the AKLNG Parties are
currently underway on the following conmmercial
agreenents. As these negotiations includes proprietary
and confidential terns and conditions, additional
details on these contracts and agreenents wll be
provi ded as negotiations are conpl et ed.

Gas suppl y- bal anci ng Agr eenent

Gover nance Agreenent

Expansi on and Access Agreenent

Fi scal Agreenent

W t hdrawal Agreenent

Gas Sales by Wthdraw ng Parties Agreenent

Co- Chair MacKinnon noted that there were sone agreenents
that were not in SB 138. Ms. Rutherford agreed that there
were specific issues that were not in SB 138. She expl ai ned
that there were elenents in the upstream that required
closure before there could be a royalty in kind decision,
for exanple the byproduct disposal. She stressed that there
woul d be some issues inbedded in some other agreenents. She
remarked that the governance agreenents would be led by
AGDC, but DNR had input in the negotiations to protect the
state's sovereign interests.

M. Schultz stated that the wthdrawal agreenent would
probably be applied to the governance agreenent.

4:35:51 PM

Co- Chair MacKinnon recalled that the governor had stated in
a press conference that SB 138 was "fundanentally flawed."
She queried the reasoning behind that statenment. GCeneral
Ri chards responded that he did not know the reason for that
statement .

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered why there should be further
investnment, if the governor believed the AKLNG project was
fundanmentally flawed. GCeneral Richards replied that the
adm nistration was attenpting to rmake the process
functi oni ng, to the extent t hat the governor had
reservations.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered why the governor believed that
SB 138 was fundanental |y flawed.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P. M



Co-Chair Kelly looked at slide 13, and wondered which
agreenent was contingent on Decenber 4, 2015. Ceneral
Richards replied that it was the parties' intentions to
have the gas bal ancing, wi t hdrawal , and gas sales
agreenents conpl eted by Decenber 4.

Co-Chair Kelly surm sed that the bal ancing, wthdrawal, and
sales agreenent were fairly close to conpletion. General
Ri chards agreed.

Co-Chair Kelly remarked that he was worried about the
deadl i ne, because of the magnitude of the contracts. He
gueried the capability of the conpletion of the agreenents.
He stated that sone felt that the Decenber 4 deadline was
an "artificial deadline." General R chards asked for a
guestion restatenent.

4:40: 15 PM

Co-Chair Kelly restated his question. He specifically
wondered how "hard a deadline" was the Decenber 4 deadline.
General Richards responded that in order to nake the
timeline deadlines necessary to have the constitutional
anendnent on the ballot, the Decenber 4 deadline was
realistic.

Co-Chair Kelly surmsed that the wthdrawal agreenent
included the ability of the state to commt to potentially
hundreds of billions of cubic feet of gas. CGeneral Richards
stated that the agreenent was not yet negotiated, so it was
uncl ear what the agreenent woul d contain.

Co-Chair Kelly stressed that he was attenpting to
under stand the magni tude of the agreenents.

Senator Hof fman wondered if some or all of the agreenent
deadlines were considered "hard deadlines" or "targets."
CGeneral Richards explained that the hard deadline was the
date by which the constitutional anendnent be approved by
the legislature to get on the Novenber 2016 ball ot.

Senator Hoffrman asked if the deadline was Decenber 4.
CGeneral Richards replied in the negative. He stated that
the deadline would be June 2016. He stated that the
Decenber 4 deadline was a statenment from the parties as to
when they expected and hoped conplete the negotiations for
t he agreenents.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 17 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P. M



Senat or Hof fman wondered if the parties considered
deadlines "hard deadlines" or "targets." GCeneral Richards

replied that he was treating the deadline like a "hard
deadline", but noted that sone deadlines slip in the
process.

Co- Chair MacKinnon shared that she had reviewed a 121
docunent, and felt that there was no way the parties could
agree unless there was great conprom se. Ceneral Richards
replied that the process was confidential.

4:44:56 PM

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon announced t hat CGener al Ri chards
statenment was "unacceptable.” She wondered if there could
be an executive session to determine the negotiated terns
on behalf of the state for well head value. She wondered
how the conmttee would know that there was a "good deal."
Cener al Ri char ds stressed t hat t he process was
confidenti al .

Co-Chair MacKinnon asked if SB 138 was flawed. GCeneral
Richards replied that it was inappropriate to provide his
opi nion on fundanmental policy matters. He stressed that he
would continue to advocate for his client's positions,
including working toward the best deal for the state and
providing the contracts on tine.

Co-Chair Kelly wondered if the contracts would be presented
to the legislature for review before Decenber 4. GCeneral
Richards replied that the target date was Decenber 4, but
there were target dates for other contracts that back up
from the deadline that were confidential. He stated that,
if all the deadlines were nmet, there would be a package of
contracts presented to the legislature in the regular
session or special session. At that tine, the l|egislature
woul d have the opportunity to approve all the agreenents.
There would then be a vote to put a constitutional
amendrment on the ballot.

Senator Dunleavy asked if the project budget vote was
schedul ed for Decenber 4, 2015. General Richards deferred
to M. Rutherford. M. Rutherford explained that the
Decenber 4 vote was for the work plan budget for the
conpl eti on of pre-FEED

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 18 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P. M



Senat or Dunl eavy surmsed that the Decenber 4 was not a
hard deadline. He asserted that a "no" vote would halt the
project regardless of the date of the neeting. M.
Rut herford replied in the affirmative.

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered if there would be slides in the
presentation related to issues wth the bill. Ms.
Rut herford responded in the affirmative.

Ms. Rutherford stated that the administration did not feel
there needed to be current structural changes required to
SB 138. She stated that there were sone negotiation that
were difficult, but the bill structure could accomdate
t he necessary acti ons.

Senator Dunl eavy wondered if the governor thought that SB
138 was "fundanentally flawed." Ms. Rutherford replied that
she could not speak for the governor. She stressed that
necessary commtnents nust be in order to allow for the
project to nove forward.

4:50: 52 PM
AT EASE

4:52: 07 PM
RECONVENED

4:52:10 PM

Senat or Dunl eavy gueri ed t he definition of
"adm nistration.” Ms. Rutherford replied that the governor
was the CEO, so the admnistration did not believe there
were any necessary changes to SB 138. She deferred further
expl anation to the governor.

Senat or Dunl eavy surm sed t hat he gover nor and
adm nistration did not believe there were any flaws with SB
138.

CGeneral Richards explained that SB 138 outlined the |egal
framework, which created the process for negotiations and
the potenti al for buil ding of a project for t he
comercialization of gas. He explained that the vast
majority of the terns were contractual agreenents between
the partners. He stressed that those contractual agreenents
were currently signed and binding. The process for SB 138
outlined a framework, but many of the process agreenents

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 19 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P.M



were contained within the contractual arrangenents. He
stressed that he was not aware of any probable proposals,
but nost of the current behavior was currently outlined by
t he nost recent contracts.

Senator Dunleavy stressed that he was hoping that the
| egi slature and the admi nistration were aligned on SB 138.
General Richards replied that he was not aware of any
issues with SB 138. He remarked that any possible issue
with SB 138 would not be related directly wth the
| egislative framework, rather the issues would be related
to the contractual relationship between the parties.

Senat or Dunl eavy asked that the admnistration inform the
| egi slature of any issues with SB 138, before any possible
deviation. General Richards replied that he would follow
his clients' guidance. He felt that the admnistration
woul d approach the 1egislature, before any possible
deviation from SB 138.

Senator Dunleavy felt that the legislature and the
adm ni stration should be aligned in their perspective of SB
138. Ceneral Richards agreed, and hoped to avoid that
i ssue.

4:56: 24 PM

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon  stated that there wuld be a
conversation the follow ng day about gas sale agreenents in
order to better wunderstand them She expressed concern
after communicating with individuals who had experience in
gas sales. She felt that CGeneral Richards had provided very
little information regarding the governor's desire to
secure gas contracts out of sync with any other nega
project in the world. She wondered if the state was smarter
than other locations in the world. Ceneral Richards did not
have a response, and stated that the Governor would be
pl eased to di scuss his strategy.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon expressed regret that General Richards
had not been present during past presentations of nega-
projects in which, and how the value is | eaked dependi ng on
who is "pushing" the projects. She wondered what would
occur, should AGDC query flaws in SB 138. General Richards
responded that he was not sure he understood the question.
He encouraged questions for AGC be directed to AGDC.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 20 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P. M



Co- Chair MacKi nnon renarked that she did not know the right
guestion to offer. She asked Ms. Rutherford to conmunicate
to the admnistration that there was concern about entering
into comrercial agreenents that the legislature did not
have know edge related to the value or |eakage of value to
t he peopl e of Al aska.

Ms. Rutherford responded in the affirmative, and continued
to address slide 13. She spoke about a key agreenent
between the producers, which addressed how the various
units would supply gas into the project.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon stated that the conmittee understood the
necessity of the agreenents, and the many conponents.

5:01: 01 PM

Ms. Rutherford discussed slide 14, "State AKLNG Tineline
Key Steps to FEED':

1. Wthdrawal Agreenent, Gas Balancing, Gas Sales

Agreerrent by Decenber

Lease Modifications

RI KOr el evant Conmerci al Agreenents

RI K/ RI 'V Deci si on

Finalize O her Agreenents

Execut abl e Agreenents to Legislature for Approval
Constituti onal Amendnent to Legi slature for

| ncl usi on on Bal | ot

8. Governor Executes Approved Agreenents

9. Novenber 8, 2016 Public Vote on Anendnent

10. FEED

Noukwd

Co- Chair MacKinnon remarked that there was sonme incom ng
information from the governor, so the commttee could
famliarize thenselves with the docunents.

5:04: 02 PM
AT EASE

5:09: 38 PM
RECONVENED

5:09:48 PM

Co-Chair McKinnon renarked that there was a letter from
Governor Wl ker that suggested that there may be future

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 21 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P. M



changes within the confines of SB 138, should the
| egi sl ature approve the buyout of TransCanada. She stressed
that the letter did not detail the anticipated changes. She
shared that the governor had asserted the AGDC had the
authority to acquire and hold TransCanada interests in the
AKLNG project. She shared that the governor supported DOR
and DNR authority and obligations to negotiate the
associ ated commerci al agreenents and di spose of gas from an
AKLNG export project as identified in state statute. She
stated that the governor had announced that he was in
charge of the executive branch responsibilities associated
with the AKLNG project. She wondered who would cast the
vote on Decenber 4 on behalf of the state, should the state
acquire TransCanada's interest. General Richards deferred
to M. Schultz.

Co- Chair MacKinnon wondered who would cast the vote on
Decenber 4, 2015 on behalf of the state. M. Schultz
replied that AGDC woul d acquire TransCanada, so AGDC woul d
be in a position to cast a vote.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon request ed i nformation about t he
formati on of the subsidiary, the board of directors for the
subsidiary, and the voting delegate of the subsidiary. M.
Schultz agreed to provide that information.

Co-Chair MacKinnon remarked that DNR nay elect to have
TransCanada or its assets conveyed to DNR or its designee
affiliates. She stressed that AGDC was an affiliate of DNR
for the purposes of the precedent agreenment. She stated
that DOL had drafted the legal instrunent that would convey
the TransCanada partnership interest to AGDC, should the
| egi sl ature approve the appropriation contenplated in SB
3001.

5:14: 47 PM

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered if it was the intent of the state
to vote "no" if the wthdrawal agreenments were not net by
Decenber 4, 2015, and if so, he queried the repercussions
of a "no" vote. Ms. Rutherford replied that the state would
choose to vote "yes." should the appropriation be approved
and the termnation of the TransCanada precedent agreenent.
She felt that, wthout an appropriation, it wuld be
i npossible to vote "yes." She stated that appropriation was
the nost inportant el enment of the question.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 22 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P. M



Co- Chair MacKi nnon stressed that the legislature wanted to
know the nanme of the person that would cast that vote. She
understood that it was a conplex issue. M. Rutherford
replied that she did have any operational insight for the
AGDC subsidiary. She stated that AGDC s representative to
t he managenent team was Joe Dubler. She expected that Joe
Dubl er woul d be the person to cast that vote.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon announced that she would like M. Dan
Fauske to travel to Juneau to neet with the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

Senator Bishop asked if General Richards was famliar with
the bylaws of the board of directors for AGDC GCeneral
Richards replied that he was not famliar with the byl aws
of the board of directors for AGC. He stated that Jerry
Juday was the AGDC DOL representative.

Senator Bi shop wondered whether the board had authorized
AGDC to nove forward with the transaction. General Ri chards
suspected that the board had not yet had the chance to vote
on the transaction.

Co-Chair MucKi nnon wondered if the chairman of the AGDC
board was John Burns. M. Rutherford replied in the
affirmati ve.

Senator Bi shop was seeking to understand whether the board
had reached a determ nation of a deci sion.

5:20:51 PM
MVs. Rut herford highlighted slide 15, "State  AKLNG
Ti mel i ne":

Decenber 2015: Wthdrawal, gas balancing, gas sales
agreenent s

First Quarter 2016: Lease nodifications, RIK-related
contracts conpl eted, RIK-RIV decision process begins

Second Quarter 2016: R K-RIV finding, contracts and
anmendnent to |egislature, |egislature approves

Third and Fourth Quarters 2016: Pre-FEED deliverables
revi ewed; Novenber 8, 2016 vote.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 23 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P. M



5:24:34 PM

Co-Chair Kelly | ooked at the first w ndow, and wondered if
it should read Decenber 4, 2015. He stressed that the gas
bal anci ng and gas sal es agreenents nust be conplete before
Decenber. Ms. Rutherford replied in the affirmative, but
explained that the l|ast date to approve work plan and
budget was Decenber 4. She stressed that the goal was
Decenber 4.

Co-Chair Kelly remarked that the balancing agreenent was
out of the scope DNR control, he wondered if the bal ancing
agreenent nust be conplete by Decenber 4. M. Rutherford
replied that the bal ancing agreenent was critical piece, so
an i nconpl ete agreenent coul d cause del ays.

Co-Chair Kelly though that without a yes vote on Decenber
4, the project was halted. He wondered the word, "delay"
really nmeant, "stop." M. Rutherford felt that the
appropriation for the work plan and budget would result in
a "yes" vote Decenber 4 by ACGDC. She felt that a better
word than "delay" my be "slippage", as related to the
possi bl e i nconpl eti on of the agreenents.

5:28:30 PM
AT EASE

5:30: 22 PM
RECONVENED

5:30: 43 PM

Co-Chair MacKi nnon announced that DOL had a request of
$10.1 mllion, and queried the reason for the -current
request versus waiting until the upcom ng regular session
to request the funds.

CGeneral Richards explained that the state had hired an
additional law firm M bank, Tweed, Hadley, and MC oy to
handl e sone of the commercial agreements. He remarked that
there were approximtely |eading six global LNG [aw firms,
including MIlbank. He stated that DOL realized that the
commercial agreenments were not noving as quickly as
desired, so MIbank was hired to draft the docunents. He
stressed that M I bank was expensive, so the $7.7 mllion
appropriation reflected the M| bank expense. He furthered

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 24 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P. M



that an additional $2.4 mllion was for Geenberg Taurig,
which wat the state's long-tinme counsel for gasline issues.

Senator Dunleavy wondered if the bill specified those
terns. Co-Chair MacKinnon replied in the negative, and
stated that there was a structural error in the bill.

Co-Chair MacKinnon queried the process to secure the
contract for MIlbank. General Richards deferred to M.
Shul t z.

M. Shultz explained that, under SB 138, contracts related
to obtaining services for AKLNG were exenpt from the state
pr ocur enent code. He expl ai ned t hat t here wer e
approximately six law firms with the desired LNG experti se.
He stated that half of the law firnms had conflicts of
interest, so therefore could not be the counsel in the
contract negotiations. He shared that there were three |aw
firmse who submitted responses to the inquiries. The three
firmse were evaluated, and DOL chose M| bank. He stressed
that M| bank had an exceptional |evel of expertise in LNG
matters.

5:35:18 PM

Co-Chair MacKinnon asked why there was a supplenental
request in October, when there was a regular session
occurring the followi ng January. M. Schultz responded t hat
DOL had spent approximately $3 mllion for outside |[egal
counsel during the current fiscal year. He explained that
DOL had $4.6 nmillion in total available funds, including
funds from DNR for $3.7 nillion. He furthered that there
was an expected $1 nmillion from AGDC. He stressed that
there was approximately $1.6 mnmllion remaining for the
current fiscal year. He explained that greater funding was
required to keep pace with the current contract agreenments.
He felt that, wthout an additional appropriation, the
remai ning funds would be conpletely depleted by Decenber
2016.

5:37:33 PM

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered why the |legislature could not
meet during the regular session to discuss additional
funding for DOL. He noted that there was an increased
request from $2.3 mllion to $10 mllion from DOL. M.
Schultz responded that DOL would return to the legislature

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 25 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P. M



for additional funding, should the |egislature approve
funding for less than $10 mllion.

Senat or Dunl eavy asked whether that would be an issue. M.
Schultz replied that the commttee's actions would dictate
the next step for DCL.

Senator Dunleavy remarked that the rate of burn was |ess
than $10 mllion by session. M. Schultz replied that,
typically, supplenmental requests were often considered
later in the regul ar session.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if the request was for gas
sal es agreenents. M. Schultz replied that the request was
for all AKLNG agreenents.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon queried the person who normally
negoti ates the agreenents. She understood that the majority
of the negotiations were conducted under the project
managenent itself. General Richards replied that the "heavy
lifting" by the | awers was required during pre-FEED

5:42: 09 PM
AT EASE

5:43: 34 PM
RECONVENED

5:43: 54 PM

Ms. Rutherford discussed slide 16, "State AKLNG Tineline
Cct ober to Decenber 2015":

Ongoi ng key commercial agreenent negotiations include
in part:

Gas Supply and Bal anci ng
Gover nance

Expansi on and Access

Mar keti ng Agreenents

Fi scal

TransCanada termnation executed (if appropriation
recei ved)

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 26 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P. M



Wt hdrawal  Agreenent, Gas Sales Under W thdrawal
Agreenent, and Gas Balancing Agreenent agreed by
Producers

5:45: 25 PM

Co-Chair Kelly wondered if the partners had agreed to the
timeline. Ms. Rutherford replied that the partners had not
agreed to the tineline. She stated that the tineline was
the sense of what is necessary to have a constitutional
anmendnent ready for the ballot. She stressed that the
project dates would adjust, should the agreenents not be
made by the foll ow ng June.

Co- Chair MacKinnon wondered if there was stability in
pressing tinelines during negotiations. M. Rutherford
replied that the state's interests nust be protected at all
costs. She shared that there were many mssed tinelines to
the project. She felt that it was inportant to attenpt to
nmeet the set deadlines, but only if it served the state's
best interest.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon shared that there was a troubling news
article that quoted Ri gdon Boykin saying, "I do outrageous
things to see what happens.” She wondered who was advi sing
the governor to push the deadlines on the decisions. She
remarked that there was an alignnent issue with those that
were not interested in the project. She wondered why the
particular deadline was inportant in creating trust wth
the partners. Ms. Rutherford replied that she did not see
the statenment from R gdon Boykin, but understood that there
were various negotiating tactics. She felt that all
negotiators were working on agreenents that were nutua
enhancenents to all parties. She remarked that the overal
intent was toward success.

Co-Chair MacKinnon understood that ©people are often
m squot ed.

Ms. Rutherford addressed slide 17, "State AKLNG Tineline
January to March 2016"

Ongoi ng key conmerci al agreenment negoti ations

RI KOr el evant agreenents reflecting satisfactory terns
finalized and submtted to DNR

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 27 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P. M



DNR' s RIK/RV decision process initiated (target 60
days)

Al  AKLNG agreenents needed for FEED in executable
form

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon di scussed the follow ng day's agenda.

5:53:49 PM
AT EASE

5:56:31 PM
RECONVENED

5:56: 38 PM

Co-Chair MacKinnon stated that there was an email from
M | es Baker addressing a question from Senat or Bi shop.

Senator Bishop read the response from M| es Baker (copy on
file) regarding the reason for AGDC recently establishing a
subsi di ary.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon appreciated M. Baker's response to the
guestion. She |ooked at the third paragraph, "It may be
advant ageous for the corporation to hold those assets in a
separate LLC. The board is seeking nmaxinmm optionality to
structure corporate assets in the nobst advantageous |ega
matter." She stressed that the conmittee wanted to
understand all aspects of the project. She felt that there
was an attenpt to protect any risk in the transfer of
assets to the corporation.

6: 00: 30 PM

Ms. Rutherford discussed slide 18, "State AKLNG Ti neli ne,
April to June 2016":

Finalize DNR R KRV determnation and finding
(subject to submission of RIKOrelevant contracts to
DNR 60 days earlier)

Agreenments submitted to Legislature

Legi sl ature approves agreenents

Legi sl ature approves constitutional amendnent

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 28 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P. M



Ms. Rutherford highlighted slide 19, "State AKLNG Ti neline,
July to Decenber 2016":

Al'l PrelUFEED deliverables reviewed by Parties and FEED
recomendati on with appropriate docunents is prepared

Novemnber 8, 2016: Gener al el ection i ncl udi ng
constitutional anmendnent

Ms. Rutherford | ooked at slide 20, "Conclusion”
Adm nistration is conplying with Senate Bill 138

State hopes to provide Legislature with agreenents and
constitutional anmendnent in 2016

Senator Hoffrman surm sed that the constitutional anmendnent
must be a part of the general election. M. Rutherford
agr eed.

6: 03: 18 PM

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon queried the specifics that MVs.
Rut herford wanted Al askans and legislators to consider. M.
Rut herford replied that the response was the sanme for each:
that each party nust agree. She remarked that the
adm ni stration would not propose sonething that was not in
the state's interest.

Senat or Bi shop announced that the schedule was not going to
drive the project.

Senat or Dunl eavy thanked the presenter. He stated that the
|l egislature was the "state." He felt that there were
| egiti mate concerns about who was in charge of the project.
He remarked that the project was all of Alaska' s project.
He stressed that there needed to be alignment within the
state to nove the project forward.

Co- Chair MacKinnon reiterated the thanks for the conmttee
presenters. She expressed concern regarding the Decenber 4
deadline in nmeeting the gas sal es agreenents. She felt that
there needed to be a conprom se.

Ms. Rutherford believed that the project was a partnership
bet ween the executives, party owners, and people of Al aska.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 29 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P. M



Co- Chair MacKinnon stated that there would be a conmttee
substitute the following day. She restated the follow ng
day' s agenda.

SB 3001 was HEARD and HELD in committee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNIVENT
6: 08: 57 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 6:08 p. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 30 10/ 30/ 15 3:09 P. M



